
 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

WYOMING PARK ADVISORY COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA 

OCTOBER 1, 2018 

6:00PM 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Chair Beynon called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Park & Recreation Board for October 1, 2018 to 

order at 6:00PM   

 

CALL OF ROLL: 

On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Park & Recreation Board were present: 

Members Bob Beynon, Barb Williams, Monica Wick, Bruce Spangler, and John Fino, Claire Luger, Park 

Board Liaison 

 

Absent: NONE 

 

Also Present: Diane Krinkie, Deputy Clerk/Administrative Assistant, Robb Linwood, City Administrator, and 

Lisa Iverson, Mayor  

 

Visitors:  Don Waller, Nancy Spangler 

 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 

 

Chair Beynon determined a Quorum was present. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MEMBER WICK, SECONDED BY MEMBER SPANGLER 

TO APPROVE THE PARK & RECREATION MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 10, 

2018 MEETING. 

 

Voting Aye: Wick, Williams, Spangler, Fino and Beynon   

Voting Nay: None  

Abstain:  None 

 

OPEN FORUM: None 

 

NEW BUSINESS:   

 

2.   Initiate Discussion of “Park” Status of Parks Indicated on the Park Map from Public Works 

Town Hall Park 

 

Water Tower Park 

 

Kunshier Park 

 

St. Paul Church Park 

 

Whitehall Ridge PUD Open Space 

 

Asian Acres 

 



Railroad Park (section owned by Chisago County) 

 

  

Member Fino stated he had asked for this item to be included on the agenda and asked if the Whitehall 

Ridge open space was considered private property.   

 

City Administrator Linwood stated that it is private and is dedicated to the homeowner’s association.   

 

Member Fino asked about Goodview Park and Tolzmann Park, if a portion of the parks were stilled 

owned by outside entities such as Schilling Construction and Della Thurnbeck.   

 

City Administrator Linwood stated that essentially the title work was never completed.  He noted that the 

City has made requests to these parties that they complete the title work to clear up the confusion.  He 

noted that the land is dedicated parkland. 

 

Member Fino stated that he understood that Kunshier Park was mostly wetland but was not aware that it 

had sinkholes. 

 

Deputy Clerk Krinkie stated that there are several sinkholes on the property that make it unsafe for the 

public to be on the property.   

 

Member Wick asked if the Park Board should remove the playground equipment and take it off the 

website for Townhall Park since that is not officially a park.  

 

City Administrator Linwood clarified that this land is City land and has never been designated as park 

land. 

 

Chair Beynon stated that there can still be playground equipment on City land that is not designated as an 

official park and suggested that it continue to be listed on the website so people know there is a ballfield 

available, even if it is used seldomly. 

 

Member Fino asked about Water Tower Park and asked if it was dedicated park land.  

 

City Administrator Linwood stated that it was not. 

 

Staff Liaison Krinkie stated that the Park Board could make a recommendation to the Council to develop 

the land as a City park. 

 

Chair Beynon stated that previous discussion of the Board felt that it was too busy of an area with street 

traffic to be a good use for playground equipment.  He stated that they had discussed the possibility of a 

more senior citizen friendly park with a pavilion and built in chess and checker boards along with some 

balance and exercise equipment.   

 

OLD BUSINESS:  

 

3. Discussion Regarding Legality of the Current Park Board as created in 2017.  Make 

Recommendation to City Council on how to proceed 

 

a. Regarding letters from City Attorney 

b. Legal status of document entitled (‘Parks and Recreation Board-Authority/Powers/Duties” 

 (final) 

 

Chair Beynon stated that he found the legal status interesting and asked if it was an intentional decision to 

not re-establish the Park Board after it was suspended or if it was an oversight.  

 

Member Wick stated that she had also looked into this and stated that the actual Resolution says that it is 



 

“temporarily suspending” the meetings of the Wyoming Park Board.   She stated that the minutes and the 

Resolutions do not “abolish” the Park Board as was stated in the letter from the attorney.   

 

Mayor Iverson stated that she believes the Resolution also states that the Park Board was an advisory 

board all along.   

 

Member Wick read aloud from Minnesota Statute Section 412.501 and noted that the City never enacted 

an ordinance, so the current body serving as the Wyoming Park Board has not been established as a 

board.   

 

Mayor Iverson stated that she understands that but thought that the ordinance that came to Council back 

in 2014 stated that the Park Board was an advisory board.   

 

City Administrator Linwood stated that when the City and the Township had orderly annexation, 

everything that was done before that time was abolished and new ordinances were passed, which is what 

the City operates under currently.  He stated that the City Council never adopted an ordinance under MN 

Statute 412.501 that enabled the Park Board to exist, so, since the ordinances were re-established in 2010, 

this board should have been acting as an advisory board.   

 

Member Wick stated that there is something listed in the current ordinances under Section 2-106 through 

2-125. 

 

City Administrator Linwood reiterated that was how it was established in 2010 and there is nothing there 

now and noted that this board is an advisory board as outlined in Attorney Loonan’s letter.   

 

Member Wick stated that she was open to making a motion to recommend that the City Council establish 

a Park Board to advise the Council. 

 

Member Spangler stated that an ordinance wasn’t needed to establish an advisory commission, but would 

be to establish a Park Board.   

 

Member Wick stated that in her research, the only City she found operated as an actual Park Board under 

State Statute was Maple Grove, the others were all advisory commissions.   

 

Mayor Iverson asked why there was so much discussion on this item because it has already been 

operating as an advisory board.  She asked for the reason for spending the time and money to discuss this 

issue. 

 

Member Fino stated that when he joined it was said to be a Parks and Recreation Board, and he assumed 

it was under the statutes, as noted.  He explained that this would mean that the money that is dedicated to 

parks does not need Council approval and would not have to go to Council for everything.  He stated that 

has been his question since day one that if the City is calling it a Park Board, why is not functioning as a 

Park Board.   

 

Mayor Iverson stated that what she is hearing is that the Board is okay with it being an advisory board 

and just wants the language cleaned up. 

 

Member Wick stated that they Board just wants to know what their role is and what the expectations are 

from Council.   

 

Member Fino stated that he did not receive any of this information before he joined the Board and thinks 

that as future members come on board, it would be nice for them to know up front that it is an advisory 

commission.   

 

Mayor Iverson reiterated that it is just cleaning up the language and expectations.  She asked if the fact 

that this is an advisory commission changed any current member’s minds about being part of the Board. 

 



Member Wick stated that when people think they are on a Park Board, but are not treated like a Park 

Board, it has been frustrating.  She would like to see it documented legally so there isn’t the same 

frustration as new people come on board.   

 

Member Fino asked if there needed to be a motion to recommend that the Council change the legal 

documents to reflect that this body is an advisory commission.   

 

Member Wick stated that she didn’t feel something should be “renamed” if it doesn’t exist and she 

doesn’t believe it has ever been officially established since 2010.  She stated that she thinks the 

clarification is that this body needs to be officially established.   

 

The Park Board discussed the bylaws, past Council Actions related to establishing this body and its 

function.   

 

Member Wick reiterated that she would like to see the Council officially create the Park Advisory 

Commission and not just rename something that was never officially established.  She stated that if 

someone would come back to check on this again, if there is confusion in the future, she doesn’t think just 

renaming it will clarify the issue.   

 

Member Spangler stated that he doesn’t think this is a terrible idea, but based on Attorney Loonan’s 

letter, renaming it will accomplish what she is concerned about.   

 

Mayor Iverson reiterated that she feels the name just needs to be changed and that will resolve the issue. 

 

Member Spangler suggested asking the Council to pass a resolution to name, what is currently acting as 

the Park Board, the Park Advisory Commission. 

 

City Administrator Linwood stated that to him, this action would just be renaming an active entity that 

has been operating since 2008. 

 

Member Wick stated that according to the letter from Attorney Loonan, the Park Board was effectively 

abolished and there is no record or resolution bringing the Park Board out of suspension or establishing a 

new board within the City.   

 

Council Liaison Luger stated that she feels using the term “establish” now will create more confusion 

because there was already a body with by-laws that has been meeting since 2010.  She stated that she 

believes creating a resolution now that says the City is establishing this body will leave the impression 

that nothing remotely like it existed prior to the resolution.   

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MEMBER WICK, TO RECOMMEND THE CITY 

COUNCIL TO ABOLISH THE PARK BOARD AND ESTABLISH A PARK ADVISORY 

COMMISSION. 

 

Motion died for lack of a second.  

 

The Board continued discussion about a name change versus the need to re-establish the body.   

 

Council Liaison Luger stated that she feels the recommendation from Attorney Loonan is clear that the 

body needs to be renamed.   

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MEMBER FINO, SECONDED BY MEMBER 

SPANGLER, TO CLARIFY THAT THIS BODY DOES NOT OPERATE AS A PARK 

BOARD UNDER STATE STATUTORY RULES, 412-491, THE PARK BOARD 

RECOMMENDS TO THE COUNCIL THAT THEY CHANGE THE NAME OF THE 

EXISTING BODY TO THE CITY OF WYOMING PARK ADVISORY COMMISSION, 

AND CHANGE ALL RELATED DOCUMENTS, POWERS OF DUTIES, AUTHORITY 

AND BYLAWS TO REFLECT THE SAME.   



 

 

Voting Aye: Williams, Fino, Spangler and Beynon   

Voting Nay: Wick 

Abstain:  None  

 

4. Adopt a Park 

 

Chair Beynon stated that the City has some informal Adopt a Park type programs, for example the Girl 

Scouts have taken on Ashton Park, but the Board had discussed trying to make a more formal program.   

 

Member Wick stated that a Park Advisory Committee cannot make contracts with people to Adopt a 

Park. 

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MEMBER WICK TO RECOMMEND THE CITY 

COUNCIL ESTABLISH A PARK ADOPTION CONTRACT AND A MEMORIAL 

TREE DEDICATION CONTRACT FOR THE CITY. 

 

City Administrator Linwood noted that the usual process would be for this body to draft those contracts 

and present them to the Council for approval.   

 

Chair Beynon stated that people have done memorial benches and things in the past but it has always 

been more informal. 

 

Member Wick rescinded her motion. 

 

Chair Beynon suggested working on this idea over the winter in preparation for a more formal process to 

present to the Council in spring.   

 

Member Wick stated that she is not comfortable independently creating a contract for the Council to enter 

into with residents.   

 

Council Liaison Luger stated that she believes the process for this type of situation is for this body to 

submit a draft document to forward to City staff and the City Attorney for review and then present to the 

City Council.   

 

Chair Beynon volunteered to use the draft contracts that Member Wick had gathered from other cities and 

try to draft a version for the City.  

 

5. Tree Lighting Event (continued discussion)  

 

Member Wick stated that her recommendation, based on the fact that this body cannot fundraise, is to 

have Council create sponsorship levels and then send the information out to local businesses, community 

groups and large corporations.  She asked if this was something the Council would draft before it comes 

before them.   

 

Staff Liaison Krinkie stated that in her opinion this is a document that this body should create and follow 

the usual process of submitting the document to City Staff and the City Attorney for review and then 

present the document to City Council.   

 

Chair Beynon questioned how much the City would be hoping to raise in the fundraising process and how 

much this event will cost.   

 

Mayor Iverson stated that Senator Koran has some lights that he will no longer uses and is willing to 

donate them to the City.   

 

Member Fino volunteered to take an inventory of what he would like to donate. 



 

Staff Liaison Krinkie stated the City can use additional lights for the Holiday’s and believes the City will 

find use for them. 

 

Member Reports: 

 

Staff Liaison Krinkie – provided the following updates from Public Works Superintendent Marty Powers.   

 Waterline was installed at Railroad Park for the drinking fountain. 

 Provided a brochure of water fountain styles for the new water fountain at Railroad Park 

 Electrical improvements are in progress as well 

 Silicone was used to repair the bubble top at Swenson Park 

 Bolts on the swing set at Goodview Park, have been repaired 

 The woodchip trail goes around the whole perimeter in the back of the field at Fireside Park 

 Picnic tables have been sanded and repainted and the concrete pads under the benches will be done in 

October, weather permitting 

 Waiting to hear back regarding acceptance to participate in the Bee and Butterfly grant  

 

ADJOURN: 

  

CHAIR BEYNON ADJOURNED THE WYOMING PARK ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING AT 7:25 P.M.  

 

 
NEXT MEETING: 

NOVEMBER 5, 2018 
6:00PM 

 


